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1,Ilt, I i s GREAT DYNASTY INTERNATIONAL VVN0.1 3 1 73 4FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED,
3 'ht. 16

17
Plaintiff,V

e GREAT DYNASTY INTERNATIONAL
.3.

1 8
v. FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED'S

COMPLAINT
19 HAITING LI AND ZHIYAN LI,

[JURY TRIAL DEMANDED]20 Defendants,

21 and

22
PACIFIC BEPURE INDUSTRY, INC.,

23
Nominal Defendant.

24 N

2 25

NOW COMES the Plaintiff, Great Dynasty International Financial Holdings Limited
Lll

26

27 ("Great Dynasty"), by and through its attorneys, and for its Complaint against the Defendants,
28 Haiting Li and Zhiyan Li, hereby alleges as follows:
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1 NATURE OF THE ACTION

2 1. This case arises from fraud in connection with material fraudulent misrepresentations
3 concerning the securities of Pacific Bepure Industry, Inc. ("PBEP"), which were issued and traded in

4 the United States public markets from 2009 until the delisting of the shares in 2012. Defendant

5 Haiting Li served as Chairman, President and CEO of PBEP from November 2009 until December

6 2011, when following public disclosure in November 2011 that PBEP's net profits decreased over

7 70% he resigned from PBEP. On information and belief, Haiting Li artificially inflated PBEP's

8 revenues and profits in 2010 and 2011 for the purpose ofmisleading investors, and at the same time

9 misappropriating assets of PPEP for his personal benefit and that of his family.
10 2. Defendant Zhiyan Li, who is Haiting Li's son, was employed by PBEP in several

11 management positions in 2010 and 2011. On information and belief, he assisted and actively
o 12 participated in the misappropriation of PBEP's assets and a substantial portion of the
R

13 misappropriated assets were transferred to Zhiyan Li and other members of Haiting Li's family.
-I fo a 14 Plaintiff seeks the imposition of a constructive trust on any assets that were misappropriated by6,

5
-u 15

4A L-Haiting Li and transferred to Zhiyan Li. Haiting Li and Zhiyan (together, "Defendants") continue to
a i:
1 fa 4: 16 exercise control over the Board of Directors and management of PBEP.

(.)1
17 3. Haiting Li's misrepresentations concerning the performance ofPBEP, made in his

v.

18 capacity as Chairman, President and CEO, were undertaken with knowledge of their falsity or with

19 reckless disregard of the truth, for the purpose of defrauding PBEP investors and enriching himself

20 at the expense of investors. Haiting Li is therefore liable for damages in an amount to be determined

21 but in excess of $5 million, for violation of the federal securities laws, and for breach of fiduciary
22 duty, waste and misappropriation ofcorporate assets and unjust enrichment.

23 THE PARTIES

24 4. Plaintiff is organized under the laws of the British Virgin Islands and maintains its

25 principal office in Beijing, China. Plaintiff owned 45,000 shares of PBEP common stock which it

26 purchased in October 2009.

27 5. Plaintiff is the assignee of certain claims against Haiting and Zhiyan Li assigned by
28 other shareholders ofPBEP, including China Overseas Financial Group Limited (630,000 shares),

2
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1 Asia Alpha Limited (515,000 shares), Best Olympic Limited (369, 110 shares), Infinity Wealth

2 Management Ltd. (300,000 shares), Chinada International Limited (298,705 shares), Liu Hansong
3 (278,815 shares), Hu Yicheng (300,000 shares), and Liu Dongping (10,000 shares).
4 6. Defendant PBEP is a Delaware corporation and maintains its principal offices in

5 Jinjiang City, Fujian Province, China.

6 7. Defendant Haiting Li is a resident of China, and on information belief holds a Canada

7 Permanent Resident Card. As described further below, Haiting Li made numerous trips to the U.S.

8 in connection with the reverse merger, listing and promotion of PBEP stock, and signed SEC reports
9 I that were publicly filed in the U.S.

10 8. Defendant Zhiyan Li is a resident of Canada. As described further below, Zhiyan Li

11 accompanied Haiting Li on numerous trips to the U.S. in connection with the reverse merger, listing
12 and promotion of PBEP stock.

—3 13 JURISDICTION AND VENUE
C4 C7'

4 -t 14
u 9. The claims asserted herein arise under 10(b), 20(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.

ig 6.

t.g 15 78j(b), 78t(a) and 78t-1, and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5. Federal jurisdiction is conferred
g

go t: 16 by Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 78aa. See Securities Investor Protection Corp. v.
(7,

17 Vigman, 764 F.2d 1309 (9th Cir. 1985) ("Section 27 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15
18 U.S.C. 78aa), grants jurisdiction to the federal courts and provides for venue and service of

19 I process.").

20 10. PBEP, Zhiyan Li, and Haiting Li each has minimum contacts with the United States

21 that are sufficient under Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. 78aa, for personal jurisdiction.
22 See id. at 1316 ("[S]o long as a defendant has minimum contacts with the United States, Section 27

23 of the Act confers personal jurisdiction over the defendant in any federal district court."). As

24 discussed prior, PBEP is a Delaware corporation and Haiting Li made numerous trips to the U.S. in

25 connection with the reverse merger, listing and promotion of PBEP stock, and signed SEC reports
26 that were publicly filed in the U.S. Zhiyan Li accompanied Haiting Li on numerous trips to the U.S.

27 in connection with the reverse merger, listing and promotion ofPBEP stock. Additionally, as

28 discussed below, representatives of the PBEP, including Defendants Haiting Li and Zhiyan Li

3
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1 attended the 2010 Global Hunter Chinese Investment Conference ("Global Hunter Conference") in

2 San Francisco and made representations to investors concerning PBEP. PBEP also retained an

3 investor relations and corporate communications advisory firm to help it broaden awareness of the
4 PBEP within the U.S. financial markets. As also discussed below, PBEP was publicly traded on the

5 U.S. OTC Bulletin Board ("OTCBB"). Thus, PBEP, Zhiyan Li, and Haiting Li each purposefully
6 directed activities toward and availed themselves of the United States forum. See, e.g., S.E.C. v.

7 Ficeto, No. 11-1637, 2013 WL 1196356, *5-6 (C.D. Cal. Feb. 7, 2013) (finding personal jurisdiction
8 under Section 27 over overseas defendants that "purposefully availed themselves of the forum by
9 taking advantage of this nation's laws and its capital markets") (collecting and discussing analogous

10 Hauthority).

11 11. Venue is appropriate in this court pursuant to Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15

12 U.S.C. 78aa, which provides that "Any criminal proceeding may be brought in the district wherein

A 13 any act or transaction constituting the violation occurred. Any suit or action to enforce any liability
.4 c"

2.>
4 se .c 14 or duty created by this chapter or rules and regulations thereunder, or to enjoin any violation of such

.6 15 chapter or rules and regulations, may be brought in any such district or in the district wherein the

go it 16 defendant is found or is an inhabitant or transacts business Here each ofdefendants transacts

17 business in this District. Additionally, acts and transactions giving rise to the violations of law

18 complained of occurred in this District, including at the Global Hunter Conference in San Francisco.

19 INTRADISTRICT ASSIGNMENT

20 12. The San Francisco or Oakland Division of the Northern District of California is the

21 proper division for this case to be assigned pursuant to Local Rule 3-2(d) because acts and

22 transactions giving rise to the violations of law complained ofoccurred in San Francisco County.
23

24

25 Notably, Section 27 confers personal jurisdiction even if a plaintiff's securities fraud claims lack
sufficient facts to state a claim. See Tolentino v. Mossman, No. 07-1243, 2007 WL 4404447, *326 (E.D. Cal. Dec. 14, 2007) (holding that 78aa provides personal jurisdiction over Defendants even

27 if Plaintiffs' federal securities fraud claims are dismissed without prejudice under Rule 12(b)(6).");Poindexter v. Wedbush, Noble, Cooke, Inc., No. No. 82-1126, 1983 WL 1279, *3 (D. Or. Jan.24,
28 1983) (holding that dismissal of federal securities law claims under Rule 12(b)(6) "does not alter the

fact that the court has personal jurisdiction over defendant [under 78aa]").
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1 FACTUAL BACKGROUND

2 November 2009 Merger and Trading of PBEP on U.S. Exchange
3 13. PBEP's operations originated in China in 1993, and was operated in China through
4 certain Chinese subsidiaries, Fujian Jinjing Pacific Shoes Co. and Fujian Baopiao Light Industry
5 Co., Ltd. (the "Chinese Subsidiaries").
6 14. On November 12, 2009, the holding company that owned the Chinese Subsidiaries,
7 Peakway Worldwide Limited ("Peakway") was acquired by a U.S. company that was publicly traded
8 on the U.S. OTCBB, Wollemi Mining Corp. Following this merger, Wollemi Mining Corp changed
9 its name to Pacific Bepure Industry, Inc., and continued trading on the U.S. OTCBB.

10 15. PPEP is currently engaged in the business of manufacturing and marketing footwear
11 in China and other countries. It owns the highly successful "Baopiao" (which translates to

12 "Bepure") brand used to market casual and sports shoes, among other brands and designs.
.12 3 13 16. •BEP maintains large manufacturing facilities in Jinjiang City and Hui'an County,

14 14 45.‘

4.44 -t 14 Fujian Province China. PBEP sells its products to at least twenty-two provinces in China through.15 u

8
15 retail stores and other outlets, a distributor in South America, the Internet, and other channels.

s
g's Kt 16
s

17. Plaintiff was originally a shareholder in Wollemi Mining Corp, and became a

17 shareholder in PBEP by virtue of the share exchange by which Peakway was acquired by Wollemi.

18 At least one of the assignees, Liu Hansong, purchased additional shares through the U.S. OTCBB.
19 18. Upon completion of the share exchange, Defendant Haiting Li was named Chairman
20 and CEO of the U.S. public company and controlled approximately 70% of the total outstanding
21 shares. Defendant Haiting Li signed numerous public filings submitted to the U.S. Securities

22 Exchange Commission throughout 2010 and 2011 as PBEP's President and Chief Executive Officer.
23 19. Plaintiff and its assignees controlled approximately 18.31% of the total outstanding
24 I shares of PBEP following the share exchange.
25 Defendant Haiting Li's Misrepresentations Regarding PBEP

26 20. On January 27, 2010, PBEP announced that it anticipated that the full year sales for

27 2009 increased by at least 25% compared with 2008. This announcement was made two months

28 prior to the actual filing of the audited financials on March 31, 2010.

5
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1 21. On March 31, 2010, PBEP filed its Form 10-K that included audited financial reports
2 for the full year ended December 31, 2009, which represented that sales increased about 26.3% and
3 the net profits increased about 17%, as compared to 2008.

4 22. Defendant Haiting Li was quoted in the press release issued in connection with the
5 2010 Form 10-K, in which he stated, "I am a highly confident we have set the pace for continuing
6 growth in the current year." (Exhibit A, "Pacific Bepure Reports Second HalfPro Forma Profits
7 Grew" (Bloomberg, Mar. 31, 2010))
8 23. On May 17, 2010, PBEP filed its Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,
9 2010. In the report, PBEP disclosed that its net profits increased about 48% compared with the same

10 period in 2009.

11 24. On July 13, 2010, representatives of PBEP, including Defendants Haiting Li and

e.
12 Zhiyan Li attended the Global Hunter Conference in San Francisco. During this timeframe Zhiyan0>

N

Om 5 TI
A a 13 Li was employed by PPEP as secretary to the board ofdirector ofPBEP and assistant to the CEO.4 IA a'

i 4t 14 25. Defendants Haiting and Zhiyan Li both participated in the Global Hunter Conference
`4 15 and made representations to conference attendees concerning PBEP. (Exhibit B, "Pacific Bepuret i Fs.

.51 tp c... 16 Industry Inc to Present at the 2010 Global Hunter China Conference" (Marketwire, June 30, 2010))0
0 41x
4

17 PBEP also engaged a U.S. marketing firm, DGI Investor Relations, to assist with investor
18 communications.

19 26. At the Global Hunter Conference, PBEP communicated to investors that it had a

20 market capitalization of $33.75 million, and quarterly earnings of $1.68 million on revenues of$4.73
21 million.

22 27. On August 16, 2010, PBEP filed its Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30,
23 2010. In the report, PBEP disclosed that its revenues increased about 32% and net profits increased
24 about 25%, in each case compared with the same period in 2009.
25 28. On November 15, 2010, PBEP filed its Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended
26 September 30, 2010. In the report, PBEP disclosed that its revenues increased about 33% compared
27 with the same period in 2009.

28 29. On February 2, 2011, PBEP announced that it had retained Crescendo

6
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1 Communications, LLC ("Crescendo") as its investor relations and corporate communications
2 advisory firm to help broaden awareness ofPBEP within the U.S. financial markets. (Exhibit C,
3 "Pacific Bepure Retains Crescendo Communications as Investor Relations and Corporate
4 Communications Advisor" (GlobeNewswire, Feb. 2, 2011))
5 30. On February 8, 2011, PBEP announced that it completed the construction phase for a

6 new and modernized production manufacturing facilitiin Quanzhou, Fujian Province, anticipating a

7 more than 70% growth in production capacity, or 1.5 million additional pairs of footwear.
8 31. On February 22, 2011, PBEP announced, through its U.S. public relations firm, that it
9 would present at the Rodman & Renshaw Annual Global Investment Conference taking place in

10 Shanghai, China from March 6 8, 2011 ("Rodman & Renshaw Conference"), and that Defendant
11 Haiting Li and Zhong Zhao, the CFO of PBEP, would attend the Rodman & Renshaw Conference.

c, 12 (Exhibit D, "Pacific Bepure to Present at Annual Rodman & Renshaw Global Investment
c, 13 Conference" (Bloomberg, Feb. 22, 2011)) Zhiyan Li, who is the vice president and the secretary to0.,

(l)

tr4t 14 the Board of Directors of PBEP, also attended the Rodman & Renshaw Conference as a road showE
o e

15 campaign to promote PBEP, and its financing plan among the Chinese and American investors.g
Ai 16 32. On March 31, 2011, PBEP filed its Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31,

17 2010. In the report, PBEP disclosed that its revenues increased about 43% compared with the same

18 flperiod in 2009.

19 2011 SEC Letters and Delisting of PBEP

20 33. Contrary to the positive growth and earnings reported in PBEP's public filings,
21 PBEP's performance in 2011 was severely deteriorating. Defendant Haiting Li, with knowledge and
22 intent to deceive investors, used his position as President and CEO of PBEP to conceal this
23 information from investors.

24 34. On September 7 and November 9, 2011, the SEC sent two letters to PBEP requesting
25 that it revise and clarify certain disclosures in its Form 10-K for Fiscal Year Ended December 31,
26 2010.

27 35. On November 11, 2011, PBEP filed its Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

28 September 30, 2011. In the report, PBEP disclosed that its revenues decreased about 30% and net

7
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1 profits decreased about 77%, in each case compared with the same period in 2010.

2 36. On December 6, 2011, Defendant Haiting Li resigned as the President and CEO of

3 PBEP, and Mr. Zhong Zhao resigned as the CFO and Treasurer of PBEP.

4 37. On December 12, 2011, two independent directors of PBEP, Fuhsin Chen and

5 Minghua Liu, resigned from the Board.

6 38. On January 5, 2012, the SEC sent another letter to PBEP, urging PBEP to promptly
7 respond to the SEC's previous letters.

8 39. On March 27, 2012, PBEP appointed Wu Jiawei and Lin Mingle, as new independent
9 directors of PBEP. The two new directors also formed a special committee of the Board ofDirectors

10 to consider alternatives relating to PBEP's obligations as a reporting company under the Securities

11 Exchange Act of 1934.

12 40. On March 30, 2012, PBEP filed a Form 15 with the SEC to voluntarily deregister its

g 13 Common Stock. (Exhibit E, Mar. 30, 2012 Form 15)
ImJ Cf) C"'

*rty -t 14 41. On information and belief, PBEP's financial results as reported to the SEC are
.0

t, .E. 15 substantially more favorable than the financial results of the Chinese Subsidiaries as reported to the

16 Chinese tax authorities. In other words, PBEP artificially inflated its financial results for the purpose
w

17 of misleading U.S. investors, and at the same time underreported its financial results in China for the

18 purposes of avoiding taxes in China.

19 42. On information and belief, the new President and CEO and the independent directors

20 of PBEP are controlled by Defendant Haiting Li, rendering any demand for an investigation or legal
21 action against Haiting Li futile. In fact, Defendant Haiting Li still serves as the controlling person

22 and daily liaison of PBEP. The Plaintiff and certain assignees sent numerous letters to PBEP

23 relating to these issues but PBEP has not responded.
24 43. As a result of the delisting of PBEP shares, Plaintiff and its assignees suffered the loss

25 of their entire investment in PBEP, in an amount exceeding $5 million.

26 NO SAFE HARBOR

27 44. PBEP's "Safe Harbor" warnings accompanying its reportedly forward-looking
28 statements ("FLS") issued during the relevant time period were ineffective to shield those statements

8
COMPLAINT



I I

ii

I I

II

Case4:13-cv-Z34-KAW Documentl Ffied04/17(1) Page9 of 16

1 from liability. Because most of the false and misleading statements related to existing facts or

2 conditions, the Safe Harbor has no applicability. To the extent that known trends should have been
3 included in PBEP's financial reports prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
4 Principles, they are excluded from the protection of the statutory Safe Harbor. 15 U.S.C. 78u5
5 11(b)(2)(A).
6 45. Defendant Haiting Li is also liable for any false or misleading FLS pleaded because,
7 at the time each FLS was made, Haiting Li knew the FLS was false or misleading and the FLS was

8 authorized and/or approved by an executive officer and/or director of PBEP who knew that the FLS
9 was false. In addition, the FLS were contradicted by existing, undisclosed material facts that were

10 required to be disclosed so that the FLS would not be misleading. Finally most of the purported
11 "Safe Harbor" warnings were themselves misleading because they warned of "risks" that had

12 already materialized or failed to provide meaningful disclosures of the relevant risks.
3 13 ADDITIONAL SCIENTER ALLEGATIONS
c"

4 r; a 14 46. As alleged herein, Defendant Haiting Li acted with scienter in that he knew that the
6

15 public documents and statements issued or disseminated in the name of PBEP were materially false
E e
b' 4. 16 and misleading; knew that such statements or documents would be issued or disseminated to thec
0 4,1

17 investing public; and knowingly and substantially participated or acquiesced in the issuance or

18 disseminaticin of such statements or documents as primary violations of the federal securities laws.
19 As set forth elsewhere herein in detail, Defendant Haiting Li, by virtue ofhis receipt of information
20 reflecting the true facts regarding PBEP, his control over, and/or receipt of modification ofPBEP's

21 allegedly materially misleading misstatements and/or their associations with PBEP which made him

22 privy to confidential proprietary information concerning PBEP, participated in the fraudulent scheme
23 alleged herein.

24 47. Defendant Haiting Li was also touting PBEP's purportedly positive financial results

25 during the relevant time period in order to entice other persons entities to invest in or acquire PBEP

26 stock. To these ends, Defendants participated in multiple investor conferences and a roadshows

27 during the relevant time period, including the Global Hunter Conference and Rodman & Renshaw
28 Conference discussed above.

9
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1 LOSS CAUSATION

2 48. Defendant Haiting Li was also touting PBEP's purportedly positive financial results

3 during the relevant time period, when at the same time Haiting Li made false and misleading
4 statements, and omitted material information, concerning PBEP's business fundamentals and

5 engaged in a scheme to deceive Plaintiff. Defendant Haiting Li knowingly misstated PBEP's actual

6 business metrics in order to improve the Plaintiff's perception of PBEP's worth to allow certain

7 PBEP insiders, including Haiting Li, to transfer assets of PBEP to himself and his family, to the

8 detriment of PBEP shareholders.

9 49. By artificially inflating and manipulating PBEP stock price, Defendant Haiting Li

10 deceived Plaintiff and caused it losses when the truth was revealed. When Haiting Li's prior
11 misrepresentations and fraudulent conduct became apparent to the market, as detailed herein, it

12 caused the price of PBEP stock to fall precipitously as the prior artificial inflation came out of the

13 stock price. As a result of their purchases of PBEP stock, Plaintiff suffered economic loss, i.e.,
7 V'

(1)

0
-s 14 damages, under the federal securities laws.

.0

3 `.1 15 DEMAND FUTILITY

fo 16 50. Plaintiff brings Counts III through VI of this action derivatively in the right and for

17 the benefit of PBEP to redress injuries suffered, and to be suffered, by PBEP as a direct result of

18 Defendant Haiting Li's breaches of fiduciary duty and unjust enrichment. PBEP is named as a

19 Nominal Defendant solely in a derivative capacity.
20 51. Plaintiff will adequately and fairly represent the interests of PBEP in enforcing and

21 prosecuting its rights.

22 52. Plaintiff was a shareholder ofPBEP common stock at the time of the wrongdoing
23 complained of, and was continuously a shareholder until the delisting of PBEP common stock.

24 53. Plaintiff did not make a pre-suit demand on the Board to pursue this action, because

25 such a demand would have been a futile and wasteful act.

26 54. The Board of PBEP currently consists of individuals who, on information and belief,

27 were appointed by or with the substantial influence of the Defendant Haiting Li. The Board

28 members owe their positions and compensation to the influence of Defendant Haiting Li, and/or are

10
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1 beneficiaries of the wrongdoing alleged herein, and thus could not fairly and fully prosecute a

2 lawsuit even if such a lawsuit were instituted by them, and therefore demand is futile.

3 55. PBEP has been and will continue to be exposed to significant losses due to Defendant

4 Haiting Li's wrongdoing. Yet, the Board Members have not filed any lawsuits against Haiting Li or

5 others who were responsible for the wrongful conduct. Thus, the Board Members are breaching
6 their fiduciary duties to the Company and face a sufficiently substantial likelihood of liability for

7 their breaches, rendering any demand upon them futile for this additional reason.

8 COUNT I

9 ForNiolation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5

10 Against Defendant Haiting Li

11 56. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the above paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.

12 57. Throughout the relevant time period, Defendant Haiting Li, as the President and CEO

A 3 13 of PBEP, in pursuit of his scheme and continuous course ofconduct to inflate the market price of
ch

f. -t 14 PBEP common stock, had the ultimate authority for making, and knowingly or recklessly made,
15 materially false or misleading statements or failed to disclose material facts necessary to make the

g g
zo 16 statements made, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.
0 A

17 58. During the relevant time period, Defendant Haiting Li, as the President and CEO of

18 PBEP, carried out a plan, scheme, and course ofconduct using the instrumentalities of interstate

19 commerce and the mails, which was intended to and, throughout the relevant time period did: (a)
20 artificially inflate and maintain the market price of PBEP common stock; (b) deceive the investing
21 public, including Plaintiffs, as alleged herein; (c) cause Plaintiffs to purchase and/or continue to hold

22 shares of PBEP stock; and (d) cause them losses when the truth was revealed. In furtherance of this

23 unlawful scheme, plan and course of conduct, Defendant Haiting Li took the actions set forth herein,
24 in violation of §10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5, 17 C.F.R.§ 240.10b-5. Defendant

25 Haiting Li is sued either as primary participants in the wrongful and illegal conduct charged herein

26 or as controlling persons as alleged below.

27 59. In addition to the duties of full disclosure imposed on Defendant Haiting Li as a result

28 of his affirmative false and misleading statements to the investing public, Defendant Haiting Li, as

I I
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1 the President and CEO of PBEP, had a duty to promptly disseminate truthful information with

2 respect to PBEP's operations and performance that would be material to investors in compliance
3 with the integrated disclosure provisions of the SEC, including with respect to PBEP's revenue and

4 earnings trends, so that the market price of PBEP's securities would be based on truthful, complete
5 and accurate information. SEC Regulations S-X (17 C.F.R. 210.1.01, et seq.) and S-K (17 C.F.R.

6 229.10, et seq.).
7 60. Defendant Haiting Li had actual knowledge of the misrepresentations and omissions

8 of material facts set forth herein or acted with reckless disregard for the truth in that he failed to

9 ascertain and disclose such facts, even though such facts were either known or readily available to

10 him.

11 61. As a result of the dissemination of the materially false and misleading information

c, 12 and failure to disclose material facts as set forth above, the market price of PBEP common stock was

c 13 artificially inflated during the relevant time period. In ignorance of the fact that the market price of
cn

4:30 't 14 PBEP common stock was artificially inflated, and relying directly or indirectly on the false andu
o 0

15 misleading statements made knowingly or with deliberate recklessness by Defendant Haiting Li, or

"6 I ris
3 se IT* 16 upon the integrity of the market in which the shares traded, Plaintiff purchased and/or continued to

c

17 hold shares of PBEP stock and, when the truth was revealed, were damaged thereby.
18 62. Had Plaintiff and the marketplace known of the true facts, which were knowingly or

19 recklessly concealed by Defendant Haiting Li, Plaintiffwould not have purchased, otherwise

20 acquired or continued to hold their shares ofPBEP stock during the relevant time period, or if they
21 had acquired such shares during the relevant time period, they would not have done so at the

22 artificially inflated prices which they paid.
23 63. By virtue of the foregoing, Defendant Haiting Li has violated 10(b) of the Exchange
24 Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. 17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5.

25 II COUNT II

26 For Violation of 20(a) of the Exchange Act

27 Against Defendant Haiting Li

28 64. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the above paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.

12
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1 65. Defendant Haiting Li had control over PBEP and made the material false and

2 misleading statements and omissions on behalf ofPBEP within the meaning of 20(a) of the

3 Exchange Act as alleged herein. By virtue of his controlling shareholder status, executive positions,
4 board membership, and stock ownership, and their culpable participation, as alleged above, Haiting
5 Li had the power to influence and control and did, directly or indirectly, influence and control the

6 decision making of PBEP, including the content and dissemination of the various statements which

7 Plaintiff contends were false and misleading. Defendant Haiting Li was provided with or had

8 unlimited access to PBEP's internal reports, press releases, public filings, and other statements

9 alleged by Plaintiff to be misleading prior to or shortly after these statements were issued, and had

10. the ability to prevent the issuance of the statements or cause them to be corrected.

11 66. In particular, Defendant Haiting Li had direct involvement in and responsibility over

12 the day-to-day operations of PBEP and, therefore, is presumed to have had the power to control or

A 13 influence the particular transactions giving rise to the securities violations as alleged herein.ca.
CI3

'7e) 14 67. By reason of such wrongful conduct, the Individual Defendants are liable pursuant to

136 C*151" CI 15 20(a) of the Exchange Act. As a direct and proximate result of the Individual Defendants'a> u^

g
A 44 16 wrongful conduct, Plaintiff suffered damages in connection with their purchases of PBEP's common

m41
17 stock during the relevant time period.
18 Ii COUNT III

19 Against Defendant Haiting Li for Breach of Fiduciary Duty

20 68. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the above paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.

21 69. Defendant Haiting Li owed PBEP fiduciary obligations in his position as President

22 and CEO. By reason of his fiduciary obligations, Haiting Li owed PBEP obligations of good faith,
23 fair dealing, loyalty, due care, reasonable inquiry, oversight and supervision.
24 70. Defendant Haiting Li violated and breached his fiduciary duties of good faith, fair

25 dealing, loyalty, due care, reasonable inquiry, oversight and supervision.
26 71. Defendant Hafting Li knowingly, recklessly or negligently approved the issuance of

27 false statements that misrepresented and failed to disclose material information concerning PBEP.

28 Haiting Li also allowed PBEP to cause, or himself caused, PBEP to fail to implement adequate
13
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1 internal controls and procedures to ensure the accuracy of PBEP's financial reporting. These actions

2 could not have been a good faith exercise of prudent business judgment to protect and promote

3 PBEP's corporate interests.

4 72. As a direct and proximate result of Defendant Haiting Li's failure to perform his

5 fiduciary obligations, PBEP has sustained significant damages. As a result of the misconduct

6 alleged herein, Defendant Haiting Li is liable to PBEP.

7 73. Plaintiff, on behalf of PBEP, has no adequate remedy at law.

8 COUNT IV

9 Against Defendant Haiting Li for Waste of Corporate Assets

10 74. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the above paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.

11 75. The wrongful conduct alleged regarding the issuance of false and misleading

12 statements, was continuous, connected, and was on-going throughout the relevant time period. It

to: 13 resulted in continuous, connected, and on-going harm to PBEP.
Z

"1 *re .t 14 76. As a result of the misconduct described above, the Individual Defendants wasted
(+15
t, .3 15 corporate assets by: (i) by paying bonuses to certain of its executive officers; and (ii) interest-free

.11 cu

u E

3 gm gt 16 loans to certain of its executive officers which were never intended to be repaid and which never

0 As
17 were repaid.

18 77. As a result of the waste of corporate assets, Defendant Haiting Li is liable to PBEP.

19 78. Plaintiff, on behalf of PBEP, has no adequate remedy at law.

20 COUNT V

21 Against Defendant Hailing Li for Unjust Enrichment

22 79. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the above paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.

23 80. By his wrongful acts and omissions, Defendant Haiting Li was unjustly enriched at

24 the expense of and to the detriment of PBEP.

25 81. Defendant Haiting Li was unjustly enriched as a result of the compensation he

26 received while breaching the fiduciary duties that he owed to PBEP.

27 82. Plaintiff, as a shareholder and representative of PBEP, seeks restitution from

28 Defendant Haiting Li and seeks an order from this Court disgorging all profits, benefits, loans and

14
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1 other compensation obtained by Haiting Li from their wrongful conduct and fiduciary breaches.

2 83. Plaintiff, on behalf of PBEP, has no adequate remedy at law.

3 COUNT VI

4 Against Defendant Zhivan Li for Imposition of a Constructive Trust

5 84. Plaintiff repeats and realleges the above paragraphs as though fully set forth herein.

6 85. On information and belief, Defendant Haiting Li transferred certain assets obtain

7 through his misappropriation of PBEP's property to family members, including his son Defendant

8 Zhiyan Li.

9 86. Retention of the proceeds ofDefendant Haiting Li's misappropriation primarily by
10 his son Zhiyan Li, in particular where Zhiyan Li was employed at PBEP's expense aS the secretary
11 and assistant to Defendant Haiting Li and as such participated in the misrepresentations that were

12 made, caused to be made or allowed by Defendant Haiting Li, would violate the principles ofequity.
3 13 87. For example, on information and belief Defendant Zhiyan Li attended and

12. NI•
42'

1-3 14 participated in the 2010 Global Hunter Conference in San Francisco, at PPEP's expense, at theIv La: U

("5
.5 15 direction of Defendant Haiting Li, and for the purpose of making and/or furthering

204: 16 misrepresentations concerning PBEP's financial condition.

17 88. Plaintiff, both individually for itself and on behalf of its assignees, and derivatively4
18 on behalf of PBEP, seeks the imposition of a constructive trust on any proceeds obtained through by
19 Defendant Hafting Li through conduct constituting securities fraud, breach of fiduciary duty, waste

20 off corporate assets and resultant unjust enrichment, that may be in the possession ofdefendant

21 Zhiyan Li, up to $5 million, until a determination is made by the Court as to an appropriate
22 disposition of the assets.

23 89. Plaintiff, both for itself and derivatively on behalf of PBEP, has no adequate remedy
24 at law.

25 PRAYER FOR RELIEF

26 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment as follows:

27 a) Awarding compensatory damages in favor of Plaintiff against all Defendant Haiting Li,
28 for all damages sustained as a result of Defendant Haiting Li's wrongdoing, in an amount

15
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1 to be proven at trial and in excess of $5 million, including interest thereon;

2 b) Imposing a constructive trust upon any assets in the possession or control ofDefendant

3 Zhiyan Li that were obtained as a result of Defendant Haiting Li's wrongdoing, in an

4 amount to be proven at trial and in excess of $5 million, including interest thereon;

5 c) Awarding Plaintiff its reasonable costs and expenses incurred in this action, including

6 counsel fees and expert fees; and

7 d) Awarding such other and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

8 JURY DEMAND

9 Plaintiff demands trial by jury.

10

11 Dated: April 17, 2013 Respectfully submitted,

9 12

A
LOCKE LORD LLP

Sal.
14 By: 11.'1/

v.
ti, 13

t..5 15 Jo. Kloecker (pro hac vice application pending)

3 is DI; 16
Attorneys for Plaintiff

l'r2
17 GREAT DYNASTY INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
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v HOLDINGS LIMITED
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